
 

 

 
 

APPEALS AND REVIEWS COMMITTEE 
 

This meeting will be recorded and the sound recording subsequently made available via 
the Council’s website: charnwood.gov.uk/pages/committees 
 
Please also note that under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 
that other people may film, record, tweet or blog from this meeting.  The use of any 
images or sound recordings is not under the Council’s control. 
 

 
 

To: Councillors Capleton (Chair), Howe (Vice-Chair), S. Bradshaw, K. Harris and 
Needham (for attention) 

 
All other members of the Council 

(for information) 
 

You are requested to attend the meeting of the Appeals and Reviews Committee to be 
held in Virtual Meeting - Zoom on Monday, 28th September 2020 at 5.00 pm for the 
following business. 
 

 
 
Chief Executive 
 
Southfields 
Loughborough 
 
18th September 2020 
 

AGENDA 
 

1.   APOLOGIES 
 

 

2.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

3 - 5 

 To receive and note the minutes of the previous meeting. 
 

3.   QUESTIONS UNDER OTHER COMMITTEE PROCEDURES 12.8 
 

 

4.   DISCLOSURES OF PECUNIARY AND PERSONAL INTERESTS  

Public Document Pack

Page 1

file:///C:/Users/karenw/AppData/local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/NU3M8P7G/charnwood.gov.uk/pages/committees


 

 
5.   BOROUGH OF CHARNWOOD (11 TICKOW LANE, SHEPSHED) 

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 2020 
 

6 - 24 

 A report of the Head of Strategic Support is attached. 
 

6.   BOROUGH OF CHARNWOOD (1323 MELTON ROAD, SYSTON) 
TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 2020 
 

25 - 43 

 A report of the Head of Strategic Support is attached. 
 

 

PROCEDURE 
 
The procedure to be followed in considering objections to Tree Preservation Orders is as 
follows: 
 
(a)  The Head of Strategic Support or his/her representative will introduce the report 

before the Appeals and Reviews Committee which will include written statements 
by both parties (i.e. the Head of Planning and Regeneration and the objector(s)). 

 
(b)  The Head of Planning and Regeneration or his/her representative will present 

his/her case for confirming the order with or without modifications. 
 

Members of the Appeals and Reviews Committee and the objector(s) may then 
ask him/her questions. 

 
(c)  The objector(s) will present his/her case, if he/she wishes to do so. 
 
 Members of the Appeals and Reviews Committee and the Head of Planning and 

Regeneration or his/her representative may then ask the objector(s) questions. 
 
(d)  Members of the Appeals and Reviews Committee will ask the parties for any 

additional information or clarification they require. 
 
(e)  The Appeals and Reviews Committee, with the advice of the Head of Strategic 

Support or his/her representative as necessary, will then decide whether or not 
the order should be confirmed and, if so, whether with or without modifications. 

 
The parties will not participate in the meeting at this stage and each will have the 
options of sitting in the public gallery or leaving the meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



 

 

1 
 

Appeals and Reviews Committee - 8th June 
2020 

Published – 9th June 2020  

 

APPEALS AND REVIEWS COMMITTEE 
8TH JUNE 2020 

 
PRESENT:  The Chair (Councillor Capleton) 

The Vice Chair (Councillor Howe) 
 Councillors Charles, K. Harris and Needham 

  

 Legal Services Manager, Solicitor to the Council 
Principal Solicitor - Planning, Property and 
Contracts 
Team Leader Natural & Built Environment 
Senior Landscape Officer 
Information Development Manager 
Democratic Services Manager 

 Democratic Services Officer (LS) and Democratic 
Services Officer (SW) 

 
APOLOGIES: None  

 
The Chair stated that this virtual meeting was being livestreamed as a public meeting 
and would be recorded and the recording subsequently made available via the 
Council’s website.  He also advised that, under the Openness of Local Government 
Bodies Regulations 2014, other people may film, record, tweet or blog from this 
meeting, and the use of any such images or sound recordings was not under the 
Council’s control. 
 

1. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 27th January 2020 were 
received and noted. 
 

2. QUESTIONS UNDER OTHER COMMITTEE PROCEDURES 12.8  
 
No questions had been submitted. 
 

3. DISCLOSURES OF PECUNIARY AND PERSONAL INTERESTS  
 
No disclosures were made. 
 

4. BOROUGH OF CHARNWOOD (REARSBY HOUSE ENTRANCE - REARSBY 
HOUSE, 1740 MELTON ROAD, REARSBY) TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 2019  
 
Considered a report of the Head of Strategic Support setting out details of the Tree 
Preservation Order served on the above site, the objection received to the Order and 
the comments of the Head of Planning and Regeneration on the issues raised by the 
objection (item 5 on the agenda filed with these minutes). 
 
Assisting with consideration of the report: The Principal Solicitor – Planning, Property 
and Contracts. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 

 

2 
 

Appeals and Reviews Committee - 8th June 
2020 

Published – 9th June 2020  

 

The Head of Planning and Regeneration’s representatives attended the meeting to put 
forward their case and answer the Committee’s questions.  The objectors did not 
attend the meeting. 
 
The Committee considered this matter in accordance with the “Procedure for 
Considering Objections to Tree Preservation Orders” set out in the Council’s 
Constitution and on the agenda for this meeting. 
 
RESOLVED that the Borough of Charnwood (Rearsby House Entrance – Rearsby 
House, 1740 Melton Road, Rearsby) Tree Preservation Order 2019 be confirmed 
without modification. 
 
Reason 
 
Having considered, in accordance with the procedure set out in the Council’s 
Constitution, the objection to the Order, the Committee considered that the reasons 
put forward for not protecting the trees did not outweigh the contribution they made to 
the amenity of the area and that the trees should therefore be protected. 
 

5. BOROUGH OF CHARNWOOD (LADY JANE PARK, BRADGATE ROAD, NEWTOWN 
LINFORD) TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 2020  
 
Considered a report of the Head of Strategic Support setting out details of the Tree 
Preservation Order served on the above site, the objection received to the Order and 
the comments of the Head of Planning and Regeneration on the issues raised by the 
objection (item 6 on the agenda filed with these minutes). 
 
A further photograph had been submitted by the objector following publication of the 
report, published as an agenda supplement (copy filed with these minutes). 
 
Assisting with consideration of the report: The Principal Solicitor – Planning, Property 
and Contracts. 
 
The Head of Planning and Regeneration’s representatives attended the meeting to put 
forward their case and answer the Committee’s questions.  The objector did not attend 
the meeting. 
 
The Committee considered this matter in accordance with the “Procedure for 
Considering Objections to Tree Preservation Orders” set out in the Council’s 
Constitution and on the agenda for this meeting. 
 
RESOLVED that the Borough of Charnwood (Lady Jane Park, Bradgate Road, 
Newtown Linford) Tree Preservation Order 2020 be confirmed without modification. 
 
Reason 
 
Having considered, in accordance with the procedure set out in the Council’s 
Constitution, the objection to the Order, the Committee considered that the reasons 
put forward for not protecting the trees did not outweigh the contribution they made to 
the amenity of the area and that the trees should therefore be protected. 

Page 4



 

 

3 
 

Appeals and Reviews Committee - 8th June 
2020 

Published – 9th June 2020  

 

 
 
NOTE: 
 
No reference may be made to these minutes at the next available Ordinary Council 
meeting unless notice to that effect is given to the Democratic Services Manager by 
five members of the Council by noon on the fifth working day following publication of 
these minutes. 
 

Page 5



APPEALS AND REVIEWS COMMITTEE 
28TH SEPTEMBER 2020 

 
Report of the Head of Strategic Support 

 
ITEM 5 BOROUGH OF CHARNWOOD (11 TICKOW LANE, SHEPSHED) 

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 2020 

The above Order relates to two trees, a Sycamore (T1) and a Copper Beech 
(T2) situated in the front garden of the above address. 

The Council’s Head of Planning and Regeneration considers that the trees 
make a significant contribution to the visual amenity of the area and that, 
reference planning application P/20/0168/2, the trees were at threat from 
felling, such that it is appropriate to ensure that the trees are properly 
protected and retained in a satisfactory manner through the making of a Tree 
Preservation Order.   

Therefore, an Order was made on 1st May 2020 to provisionally protect the 
trees. 

A copy of the Order is attached at Annex 1. 
 
An objection to the Order was received on 19th May 2020 from the owner of 
the property. 
 
A copy of the objection is attached at Annex 2. 
 
The Head of Planning and Regeneration’s comments on the issues raised in 
the objection are attached at Annex 3. 
 
The Committee is asked to consider the issues raised by the objector and the 
comments of the Head of Planning and Regeneration in accordance with the 
procedure set out and to determine whether or not the Tree Preservation 
Order should be confirmed and, if so, whether with or without modification. 
 
 
Officer to contact:   Laura Strong 
    Democratic Services Officer 
    01509 634734 
    laura.strong@charnwood.gov.uk     

Page 6

Agenda Item 5

mailto:laura.strong@charnwood.gov.uk


Page 7

lauras
Text Box
ANNEX 1



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



[Received by email 19 May 2020] 
 
Dear Ms Strong, 
 
As per telephone conversation with yourself on Monday 4th May 2020, I am hereby 
submitting my objections to the recent Tree preservation orders applied to two of my trees. 
 
The tree preservation order has been made with reference to our submitted planning 
application P/20/0168/2, with references to visual amenity of the area, and ensure the trees 
are properly protected and retained in a satisfactory manner. I am of the understanding that 
this order is on a provisional basis for 6 months. 
 
The tree preservation order was received on Monday 4th May 2020, and made on the 1st 
May 2020. 
 
The trees in question are marked as T1 and T2 on the map supplied by yourself. 
 
I understand the need for the protection of trees whilst projects are being considered, or 
approved and whilst building works are carried out. 
 
We are still awaiting a decision on our submitted planning application. 
 
My objection to the tree preservation being enforced on a permanent basis is as follows; 
 
We have had a tree survey report carried at the request of Mrs Nora O Donnell to provide 
additional information in relation to trees and proposed plans. 
 
The Copper Beech Tree marked on map as T2 is a deceased Tree and has been given a 
retention category of U. 
 
The Tree inspector queried to why the councils tree officer had applied a tree preservation to 
this tree, as it is very clear to the trained eye the copper beech is at end of life.  
 
We cannot see how it is possible to protect and retain in a satisfactory manner a tree which 
is severely diseased and at end of life, therefore request TPO to be lifted on this tree. 
 
With respect to The Sycamore Tree marked on the map as T1, I appreciate the need for 
protection during the application process through to build, should our application be 
approved. However once this has come to a conclusion, I would appreciate being re-instated 
to pre application status. 
 
I found this quite upsetting, especially given the fact that directly across the road to our 
property is a Jelson building site for 300 new homes, at least 8 trees and various Hedgerows 
were ripped out recently, some of which were during Bird nesting season. Please explain 
what happened to the visual amenity of the area when this happened? And where was the 
Tree officer to protect all those trees which lined the street? Just doesn't appear fair to me. 
 
Yours Sincerely 
 
Mrs S Joyce 
11 Tickow Lane 
Shepshed 
Leicestershire 
LE12 9LY 
 

Page 11

lauras_1
Text Box
ANNEX 2



REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PLANNING AND REGENERATION                          ANNEX 3 

APPEALS AND REVIEW COMMITTEE, 28th September 2020  

BOROUGH OF CHARNWOOD (11 Tickow Lane Shepshed) TREE PRESERVATION 

ORDER 2020 - PROVISIONAL 

 

1.0  Introduction 

1.1 Background 
A planning application P/20/0168/2 for a proposed detached double garage to front of 

existing dwelling, conversion of existing garage to living accommodation and construction of 

wall and timber fence 1.8m high with gated entrance along front boundary.  The proposed 

garage would be very close to the mature sycamore and well within what would be regarded 

as the Root Protection Area had one been drawn up for the application. It was clear that the 

proposal was not informed by the guidance set out on BS 5837:2012 Trees in relation to 

design, demolition and construction- Recommendations.   I gave advice on how to mitigate 

likely impacts and that ideally they should have a proper survey and impact assessment to 

guide the design. The applicant then said if the trees presented a constraint to the desired 

garage he would simply fell them as they are not protected.  The only effective way to control 

works and protect the tree is to place them under TPO.  

 

1.2 The Site 

The site is domestic dwelling front garden with an historically open aspect without boundary 

wall. 

 

1.3  Condition of the trees 

In the case of the sycamore the tree is in good condition. 

In the case of the beech it is in fair condition due to the presence of minor ganoderma to the 

base of ther stem. There is minor reduction in foliage density but otherwise the tree is in 

good health. Its has an extected lifespan of 5-10 years. 

 

2.0  The Objections to the Order 

1 objection to the Order was received by email. 

Objection   -  Mrs S Joyce 

The objection asserts that: 

1. We have had a tree survey report carried at the request of Mrs Nora O Donnell to 

provide additional information in relation to trees and proposed plans. 

 

Page 12



2. The Copper Beech Tree marked on map as T2 is a deceased Tree and has been 

given a retention category of U. 

 

3. The Tree inspector queried to why the councils tree officer had applied a tree 

preservation to this tree, as it is very clear to the trained eye the copper beech is at 

end of life.  

 

4. We cannot see how it is possible to protect and retain in a satisfactory manner a tree 

which is severely diseased and at end of life, therefore request TPO to be lifted on 

this tree. 

 

5. With respect to The Sycamore Tree marked on the map as T1, I appreciate the need 

for protection during the application process through to build, should our application 

be approved. However once this has come to a conclusion, I would appreciate being 

re-instated to  pre application status. 

 

6. I found this quite upsetting, especially given the fact that directly across the road to 

our property is a Jelson building site for 300 new homes, at least 8 trees and various 

Hedgerows were ripped out recently, some of which were during Bird nesting 

season. Please explain what happened to the visual amenity of the area when this 

happened? and where was the Tree officer to protect all those trees which lined the 

street? Just doesn't appear fair to me. 

 

No other written representations have been made in relation to the Order. 

 

3.0 Response to the Objections 

1. It is true that I advised they get a property tree survey conducted by a Register 

consultant of the arboricultural association or similar arboricultural accreditation body. 

The reason was the architectural drawing were inaccurate for the details of the tree 

and it was self-evident from the architect’s drawings and other submission that they 

did not understand the needs of existing trees. I gave extensive advice on how to 

protect the trees and construct in close proximity to trees.  The objector’s point does 

not amount to an objection reason. It is merely background information.  

 

2. The Copper Beech Tree marked on map as T2 is not a ‘deceased Tree’ it is very 

much alive.  I dispute the assigned category U. The tree is not of such poor condition 

to merit Cat.’U’. It is alive, has good branch structure and the colonised ganoderma is 

relatively small. In an email to the case officer Mrs Lewis I gave a response which 

she forwarded to the architectural agent on 29 May 2020 setting out the following: 

Page 13



 

Further to your email I [Wendy Lewis] have received the following answers to your queries 
from Nola: 
 
The ganoderma fruiting body on T1 copper beech is minor not substantial as claimed by the 
applicants consultant. The tree does not suffer from any substantial dieback but actually 
exhibits good foliation. It is not dangerous but in decline as Ganoderma will reduce the trees 
life span. The presence of this fungal body does not necessarily require felling at this stage. 
Crown reduction may be more appropriate with regular monitoring.  The issue regarding 
objection to the TPO must go through the procedure set out and managed by Democratic 
Services. The objector is advised to have a resistograph or similar approved test carried out 
on the stem base of the copper beech. 
 
Anyone wishing to carry out works to a protected tree must submit a planning application 
for works to TPO tree. This can be done via the planning portal or by using the form #26 
available here https://www.charnwood.gov.uk/pages/downloadableforms. If they wish fell 
the copper beech this would need to be supported by an Arboricultural Association 
Registered arboricultural consultant’s report supported by a resistograph test  is a system 
that measures the speed of sound travelling across timber. test to detect presence and 
extent of stem decay, stages of rot, hollow areas, cracks and ring structure. The resistograph 
can  be used to provide an estimate tree stability and longevity.  
 
I note that the report concludes that there does not appear to be any reasonable cause in 
Arboricultural terms why the proposal should not go ahead. I will be writing my report on 
this basis. ….  
 

 

On 22 July 2020, I conveyed in an email to Mrs Joyce the following:  

 

You and your tree consultant were advised to provide evidence by way of 
either a resistograph or picus test to support the claim that the tree is 
unstable. To date the requested tests have not been submitted.  
 
While the tree does have a ganoderma fruiting at its base, there is no patent 
evidence to warrant the removal of the tree under the Regulation 14 
Exceptions clause.  
When considering risk the tree consultant would be well advised to follow the 
principle of risk management as advised by the National Tree Safety Group 
http://ntsgroup.org.uk/    
 
The requesting of proof  e.g. a resistograph test is the shared opinion of 
myself and, other local authority officers who are specialist arb. trained, from 
whom I have sought second opinion, considering the overall good condition of 
the tree. The presence of ganoderma in of itself would not automatically lead 
to a tree being given a Category U. 
 
The requested tests would be a requirement if you were to submit an 
application to fell it, which you are, of course, free to do. The application can 
be filled out via the Planning Portal or from here 
https://www.charnwood.gov.uk/pages/downloadableforms.  scroll down to 
#26. The process takes 8 weeks. 

Page 14

https://www.charnwood.gov.uk/pages/downloadableforms
http://ntsgroup.org.uk/


 

3. I assume by the term ‘Tree inspector’ Mrs Joyce means her trees consultant, a 

member of  the Institute of Foresters. I am not a tree officer but a landscape officer, a 

fact I conveyed to Mrs Joyce and her husband on a site visit in March. I dispute that 

the tree is ‘at end of life’.  A great many trees in parks and open spaces including 

LCC highway trees are colonised by Ganoderma. [Personal communication during 

shared site inspection of street tree in CBC Conservation Area with LCC Arb. Officer 

& personal communication with CBC Senior Open Space Officer regarding tree 

management strategy in regard to presence of ganoderma] The presence of 

Ganoderma in of itself is not an indicator of death or dying in a tree. Such trees are 

monitored from year to year and when the crown begins to die back they are typically 

crown reduced as a first stage in ‘managed decline’. When a tree manager observes 

clear signs of spread of ganoderma they then usually undertake a resistograph test. 

Such trees are generally only felled if the resistograph test finds structural integrity of 

the stem base to be compromised.   

 

4. The tree is not seriously diseased. While it has ganoderma present to the base it is 

not at a stage where the tree would be compromised or rendered dangerous. 

 

 

5. I am not clear what Mrs Joyce means here. She agrees to the need to protecting the 

tree. The TPO provides the legal basis for this to the highest level possible. Removal 

of legal protection would render the tree vulnerable to improper works including 

severance of anchor roots and potential felling. The pre-application status of the tree 

was totally unprotected. Even if aspects of construction tree protection were added to 

conditions they have little weight when it comes to planning enforcement should the 

conditions be breached. I have been advised that where the Council seeks to 

protects trees on development sites outside of Conservation areas we should create 

TPOs.  It is also a Duty under Section 197 of the Town and Country Planning Act 

1990 to make provision for the protection of trees. 

 

6. This expression of emotional upset and frustration is an issue outwith the scope of 

this Committee. It is therefore not relevant nor a reason for an objection to the Order.  

I cannot comment on the assertion.   

 

4.0  Conclusion  

Removing the Order by failing to confirm it at this appeal and review committee would mean 

the trees would be subject to felling with the loss of their amenity to the area. The only way 

to secure the trees presence and subsequent replacement is via confirming the Order. 

Should evidence be submitted  either via a 5 day Notification or via a TPO tree works 

application that either tree should be removed due to loss of structural integrity such as a 

could be demonstrated by either a resistograph or pictus test then reasonable consent with a 

requirement to replace could be given.   

Page 15



The committee is therefore recommended to confirm the Order without modification. 

 

Contact Officer: 

Nola O’Donnell MAgrSc Dip (hons) LA CMLI 

Senior Landscape Officer  

Tel: 01509 634766 

trees@charnwood.gov.uk    

Page 16

mailto:trees@charnwood.gov.uk


APPENDIX A  - PHOTOGRAPHS 

 

Context- view along street 

 

Page 17



 

 

Page 18



The copper beech 

 

Page 19



The Sycamore  

Page 20



 

  

Page 21



 

APPENDIX – ADVISORY NOTE ON NOTIFCATION OF DEAD AND DANGEROUS TREES.  

PLANNING SERVICE - CONSERVATION & LANDSCAPE TEAM  
DANGEROUS or DEAD TREE NOTIFICATION  - PROTECTED TREES  - TPO 

Regulation 14 & 15 Exception Works 
    

You mentioned the word ‘dangerous’ or ‘dead’ in relation to your protected tree.  

If your use is technically correct the law allows for works to make a tree safe. 
Such works to remedy a hazard must meet the legal definition description of 

presenting ‘an immediate risk of serious harm’. Any tree surgeon professionally 
registered with their industry accreditation body will know this.  
  
There are three priority levels for dangerous tree notification.  

1. immediate hazard requiring immediate emergency action – for this a 

tree surgeon may act immediately  making contact with the Authority 
though the urgency may override waiting for a response. However the 
tree surgeon must be prepared to have his decision challenged and must 

provide evidence in writing with photographs as a Notice as soon as 
practicable that his action was necessary and proportionate.  

R14 (1) (i) or (c.) & (2) (a)  
2. Hazard requiring urgent action in days-  for this the above mentioned 

evidence should be submitted in writing. This is known as 5 day 

notification. If there is no response in 5 days, the Notifier can proceed but 
as above must have submitted the required evidence as part of the 

Notice. We endeavour to return an acknowledgement well within the 5 
working days and may visit the site or require further information.  
R14 (1) (i) or (c.) & (2) (b)  

3. Identified hazard presenting potential future danger but not an 
immediate risk of serious harm- this must be dealt with through the 

application process. 
  
Any emergency works needed can be carried out providing formal notice is made 

to the Council and evidence presented, as soon as practicable.  This ideally can 
be by email but could be by Royal Mail. The phrase ‘as soon as practicable’ can 

be interpreted that a tree surgeon could as soon as he reaches the site and his 
assessment of ‘immediate risk of serious harm’ is a level 1 priority, can get to 

work immediately once he takes the required photographs and sends the 
evidence in after he has remedied the hazard and I acknowledge and recognise 
that such situations may occur.  The law is quite strict and only the hazardous 

part of the tree may be removed. In some situations the tree itself is the hazard. 
If further works takes place the tree surgeon could be liable. All works must be 

in accordance with the BS3998 as appropriate for given operation. Tree 
surgeons must send in the Notice as soon as possible. If a tree surgeon is 
at or up a tree and judges  the situation to be a level 1 priority they should deal 

with level 1 safety emergencies as appropriate  but  the formal Notice must be in 
writing and must still be sent in.  

  

What is the exception for work on dangerous trees and branches? 

Where a tree presents an immediate risk of serious harm and work is urgently needed to 

Page 22



remove that risk, tree owners or their agents must give written notice to the authority as 

soon as practicable after that work becomes necessary. Work should only be carried out to 

the extent that it is necessary to remove the risk. 

In deciding whether work to a tree or branch is urgently necessary because it presents an 

immediate risk of serious harm, the Secretary of State’s view is that there must be a present 

serious safety risk. This need not be limited to that brought about by disease or damage to 

the tree. It is sufficient to find that, by virtue of the state of a tree, its size, its position and 

such effect as any of those factors have, the tree presents an immediate risk of serious harm 

that must be dealt with urgently. One consideration would be to look at what is likely to 

happen, such as injury to a passing pedestrian. 

If the danger is not immediate the tree does not come within the meaning of the 

exception. Where a tree is not covered by the woodland classification and is cut down 

because there is an urgent necessity to remove an immediate risk of serious harm, the 

landowner has a duty to plant a replacement tree of an appropriate size and species. 

Paragraph: 080 Reference ID: 36-080-20140306        Revision date: 06 03 2014 

  
 

Evidence 
For emergency notifications what I require several photographs: 
1. Tree in its landscape setting – this should show it at a distance to include 

surrounding buildings and any other features within the frame.  
2. The tree, showing its full extent of height and crown ideally from 4 

cardinal points. 
3 A close–up of the issue/ hazard naming the type of hazard, be it a split in 
the stem or fractured branch or evidence of root heave…. The opinion of a 

competent experienced tree surgeon can be helpful.  
Additional evidence which clearly indicates structural decay in cases of 

catastrophic stem or limb failure may be requested if photographic evidence has 
not been submitted after removal of hazard. Consequently it is advised that such 
evidence should not be removed from site until the need for hazard removal has 

been verified.  Evidence should be sent to trees@charnwood.gov.uk 
  

Please Note:  
• All Regulation 14 /15 Notices are logged.  
• All tree removed under R14/15 must be replaced. 
• Charnwood Planning Service does not provide arboricultural services or 

specialist advice to private landowners. 
 

The direct landline is mainly for live calls. Tree surgeons may also get the Senior 
Landscape Officer on the mobile but if they do not, then they need to send a text 
indicating the level of urgency.  
 
Tree Professionals  - Consultants  and Tree Surgeons 
Here are the links to the main professional accreditation bodies: 
The Arboricultural Association for Approved  tree surgeons, contractors and Registered  
consultants: https://www.trees.org.uk/Find-a-professional  , and: 
https://www.trees.org.uk/ARB-Approved-Contractor-Directory . The Institute of Chartered 
Foresters for Chartered consultants: http://www.charteredforesters.org/about-us/hire-a-

Page 23

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1990/8/section/206
mailto:trees@charnwood.gov.uk
https://www.trees.org.uk/Find-a-professional
https://www.trees.org.uk/ARB-Approved-Contractor-Directory
http://www.charteredforesters.org/about-us/hire-a-consultant/


consultant/ , The International Society of Arboriculture for tree surgeons, contractors and 
consultants: https://www.isa-arbor.com/   
 
References:  
The Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation)(England) Regulations 2012 
UK Statutory Instruments 2012 No. 605 PART 3 Regulation 14 
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/605/regulation/14/made 
TPO guidance https://www.gov.uk/guidance/tree-preservation-orders-and-trees-in-
conservation-areas  
Ends/ advice note- dangerous trees /branches revised – 08 July   2020/NOD 

 

 

APPENDIX  - COUNCILS TREE POLICY  

https://www.charnwood.gov.uk/pages/tree_policy  

 

Page 24

http://www.charteredforesters.org/about-us/hire-a-consultant/
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/605/regulation/14/made
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/tree-preservation-orders-and-trees-in-conservation-areas
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/tree-preservation-orders-and-trees-in-conservation-areas
https://www.charnwood.gov.uk/pages/tree_policy


APPEALS AND REVIEWS COMMITTEE 
28TH SEPTEMBER 2020 

 
Report of the Head of Strategic Support 

 
ITEM 6 BOROUGH OF CHARNWOOD (1323 MELTON ROAD, SYSTON) 

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 2020 

The above Order relates to five trees, a Silver Birch (T1), two Apples (T2 and 
T3), a Plum (T4) and an Ash (T5) situated within the grounds of the above 
address. 

The Council’s Head of Planning and Regeneration considers that the trees 
make a significant contribution to the visual amenity of the area and that they 
are likely to be at risk from development, such that it is appropriate to ensure 
that the trees are properly protected and retained in a satisfactory manner 
through the making of a Tree Preservation Order.   

Therefore, an Order was made on 22nd May 2020 to provisionally protect the 
trees. 

A copy of the Order is attached at Annex 1. 
 
An objection to the Order was received on 18th June 2020 from the owner of 
the property. 
 
A copy of the objection is attached at Annex 2. 
 
The Head of Planning and Regeneration’s comments on the issues raised in 
the objection are attached at Annex 3. 
 
The Committee is asked to consider the issues raised by the objector and the 
comments of the Head of Planning and Regeneration in accordance with the 
procedure set out and to determine whether or not the Tree Preservation 
Order should be confirmed and, if so, whether with or without modification. 
 
 
Officer to contact:   Laura Strong 
    Democratic Services Officer 
    01509 634734 
    laura.strong@charnwood.gov.uk     

Page 25

Agenda Item 6

mailto:laura.strong@charnwood.gov.uk


Page 26

lauras_2
Text Box
ANNEX 1



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



FAO Officer: Laura Strong, Democratic Services 

Your Ref: PT/48 

(1323 Melton Road, Syston, Leicester, LE7 2EN) Tree Preservation Order 2020 

Please find my comments to the Tree Preservation Order (TPO) below: 

I would like to object to the fruit trees referenced on your map as T2, T3 & T4 being given TPO’s 
because I do not agree with the singular statement of public amenity value being the only viable 
reason to justify the order. Correspondence from Charnwood Borough Council (CBC) has stated: “It is 
my view that the trees included in this order merit the protection afforded by a TPO because of their 
public amenity value and for the reason of expedience”. The expedience of the order because we have 
sought pre application planning advice on the plot of garden where the trees are present (“It was 
made because in our experience trees and other habitat are sometimes removed from development 
sites as part of the process of preparing a site prior to an application being made”.) Which then only 
leaves public amenity value as single reasoning for placing the order. Many documents and advice I 
have read in conjunction with making my objections enclosed state that several ways of assessing the 
amenity value should be considered and I do not feel that this has been adequately carried out or 
detailed in the order. I have highlighted (in yellow) aspects of the document quoted below (text shown 
in blue as it is not my own): 

  

Wording below referenced from: Tree Preservation Orders: A Guide to the Law and Good Practice – 
Crown copyright – www.assets.publishing.service.gov.uk 

LPAs should be able to explain to landowners why their trees or woodlands have been protected by a 
TPO. They are advised to develop ways of assessing the 'amenity value' of trees in a structured and 
consistent way, taking into account the following key criteria:  

(1) visibility: the extent to which the trees or woodlands can be seen by the general public will inform 
the LPA's assessment of whether its impact on the local environment is significant. If they cannot be 
seen or are just barely visible from a public place, a TPO might only be justified in exceptional 
circumstances;  

(2) individual impact: the mere fact that a tree is publicly visible will not itself be sufficient to warrant 
a TPO. The LPA should also assess the tree's particular importance by reference to its size and form, 
its future potential as an amenity, taking into account any special factors such as its rarity, value as a 
screen or contribution to the character or appearance of a conservation area. As noted in paragraph 
3.2 above, in relation to a group of trees or woodland, an assessment should be made of its collective 
impact;  

(3) wider impact: the significance of the trees in their local surroundings should also be assessed, 
taking into account how suitable they are to their particular setting, as well as the presence of other 
trees in the vicinity. 

The actual public amenity value or lack of being my main objection to the TPO on the fruit trees (T2, 
T3 & T4).  

I contacted CBC when I first received the notification of the intention to place the TPO and was told in 
a response via email that “All the trees included in the order are clearly visible from public rights of 
way and contribute to views both along Melton Road and Gloucester Avenue”. I only wish to object to 

Page 30

lauras_3
Text Box
ANNEX 2



the fruit trees having an order placed on them as it was never going to be our intention to get rid of 
the Silver Birch (T1) or the Ash (T5). If as part of the pre application advice the trees (T1 & T5 especially) 
would have been discussed, prior to CBC taking such drastic measures I would have been more than 
happy to explain, which would have saved valuable time and money on both our parts.  

There is only one visual angle in which they can be seen from the Melton Road, neither can they be 
seen from Gloucester Avenue.  

 (only angle where part of the top of one of the fruit 
trees is visible from Melton Road – Silver birch T1 dominates the view from this end of the footway) 

   

(Multiple views from Melton Road – no fruit trees visible from any angle) 

Page 31



   

(view from bottom of Gloucester Crescent at the start of the footpath and at 45 degrees – no fruit 
trees visible. T5 – Ash tree dominates this space) 

The only point that you get any real arguable visual public amenity value is if you physically turn 
through 90 from the footway linking Gloucester Crescent and Melton Road to face the boundary 
fence of 1323 Melton Road where you would only be viewing the tops of the fruit trees (T2, T3 & T4). 
It should also be noted that unlike the Ash and Silver birch these fruit trees do not lie on the boundary 
and are more within the private garden space so some degree of privacy should also be granted to the 
occupants and not necessarily have people peering into our garden to view the trees? It is only from 
within the garden of 1323 Melton Road that these trees can be seen in there entirety and only if you 
venture to the far end of the plot because of a cherry tree and the aforementioned Silver birch (T1). 
We at 1325 Melton Road are also unable to see the trees from our garden or the windows from the 
rear elevations of our property for the same reasons. This also enforces the fact that “other” trees in 
the area have not been referenced as a factor within the wider impact. This once again posing the 
question as to the real significance of the fruit trees within the visual amenity as there is very little in 
reality.    

 

       (taken at 90 degrees from the footpath)  

Page 32



Given the type of littering in the footway I must say I very much doubt many of the people take the 
time to do this. (pictures below) 

  

(Nitrous Oxide Canisters)        (Empty Whisky bottle’s & lids) 

From the littering its quite clear as to the main purpose of the footpath – not for admiring your 
surroundings and the trees nearby.  I feel there are many wider environmental issues and problems 
in the surrounding area than the “potential” removal of three old baron fruit trees. I stress potential 
as we have merely made an application for advice at this stage and it may go no further depending on 
the advice that comes back which could also query the need for the expedience factor of the TPO. We 
have been completely open and honest to this point in our pre-application and gave what we thought 
was more information than required so would have no reason to begin ripping trees out as we have 
no idea if the proposal is even possible at this stage. I appreciate that not everyone is the same but 
this emphasises the importance of discussion in these matters.  

I have also had a discussion with a local Arboriculturist regarding the trees listed in the TPO and whilst 
he agrees and sees the benefits of the Ash and Silver Birch (as can we) he doesn’t think the fruit trees 
should be subject to a TPO as given their age and lack of fruit bearing capacity due to the fact they 
have been unattended over a prolonged period of time – he said it would be better to start again and 
have the use of new productive trees.  

It is with all these arguments and photographic evidence presented that I conclude the fruit trees (T2, 
T3 & T4) do not pose a significant enough visual amenity as the other trees listed as they are barely 
visible from the vast majority of areas mentioned by CBC especially as there are no other exceptional 
circumstances detailed. The factors of: condition, age, remaining life expectancy, function in the 
landscape, its wildlife or historic value and ultimately its importance to the local environment have 
not been mentioned at all for any of the trees listed in the TPO which should all be significant reasons 
when considering trees for this purpose.   

Page 33



If a pragmatic approach would have been taken we could have suggested moving the boundary fence 
so the Silver birch remains on the original bungalow boundary and therefore not at expedient risk 
from development but these options were never given chance to be discussed. The plan on the pre-
application advice was designed to be as helpful as possible in showing the kind of design we were 
proposing and instead we seem to have somewhat shot ourselves in the foot. I’d be more than happy 
to amend the provisional design, so the silver birch remains on the existing property? I feel I should 
also mention at this point that there was never any intention on our part to remove the silver birch or 
the Ash tree as part of the design or planning process.    

I’m going to be honest and say that I am disappointed with the lack of communication from CBC 
leading up to this TPO. It did come as a shock when I opened the letter as it was completely out of the 
blue and whilst I appreciate the current situation (COVID-19) is far from normal it shouldn’t negate 
communication between parties concerned. The Government document referenced earlier in my 
objection does state that discussion should be encouraged in these matters and we are of course more 
than willing to enter into professional dialogue with CBC regarding this TPO. This is also applicable if 
we continue with seeking planning permission to discuss a scheme of beneficial re-planting on the 
site. It has not and never will be our intention to cause unnecessary harm to the local environment as 
part of this process.  

Kind regards 

Katherine Stevenson-Wheeler 

 

Page 34



REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PLANNING AND REGENERATION 

APPEALS AND REVIEW COMMITTEE 28th September 2020 

Provisional Tree Preservation Order – 1323 Melton Road Syston  

1.0  Introduction 

1.1 Background 
 
The trees subject to this order were initially assessed on 7th May 2020 following receipt of a planning advice 
application. The request for planning advice highlighted a risk to the trees and which forms the reason of 
expedience for making the order. The objection to the order includes a statement that the original TPO plan 
was inaccurate. For this reason, after a follow up visit on 20th July 2020, minor amendments were made to the 
locations of the trees as shown on the plan. It is the revised plan that is put before the committee (see 
Appendix 4). 
 
 
1.2 The Site 

The five trees protected by this order form a continuous group within the rear garden of 1323 Melton Road, 

Syston. This property is located on the eastern side of Melton Road and immediately to the north of a 

footway that forms part of Gloucester Avenue. 

1.3  Condition of the trees 

Trees T1 (silver birch) and T5 (ash) are located at the western and eastern ends of the group respectively 

and are both clearly visible from Melton Road. The remaining trees (T2, T3, and T4) are visible along 

Gloucester Avenue. All five trees appeared healthy at the time of the initial assessment, however during a 

follow up visit tree T3 (apple) displayed a relatively low foliage density, possibly indicating reduced vigour. 

As part of the initial visit a TEMPO assessment was carried out. Summary results are shown below in table 

1. Full results are presented in  Appendix 1: 

The TEMPO assessment method is not mandatory but is a widely used standard and objective method for 

assessing a tree’s suitability for TPO. Trees or tree groups with a score of 16 or more are considered to 

“Definitely merit” a TPO.  For trees scoring between 12-15 points a TPO is considered “defensible”. 

Table 1: TEMPO assessment results 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Tree TEMPO score 
(total) 

 Decision Guide 

T1: birch 
 

14  TPO defensible 

T2: apple 
 

14  TPO defensible 

T3: apple 
 

14  TPO defensible  

T4: plum 
 

13  TPO defensible 

T5: ash 17  Definitely merits TPO 

Page 35

lauras_4
Text Box
ANNEX 3



2.0  The Objection to the Order 

A single objection was received to the order from the owner of 1323 Melton Road Syston on 26th May 2020 

It is understood from the statement: “I only wish to object to the fruit trees having an order placed on them” 

that the objection has been made in relation to trees T2, T3 and T4 and not in relation to trees T1 and T5. 

Two principle reasons were given for the objection: 

1) That there is no reason of expedience for making the order 

2) That the trees subject to the order do not have public amenity value 

In support of the claim that the trees have no public amenity value the complainant makes the following 

assertions: 

1) That trees T2, T3 and T4 are not, or are only barely publically visible 

2) That the Gloucester Avenue footway is subjected to littering and therefore that many of the local 

residents using it have no appreciation of visual amenity 

3) The trees are old and have no fruit bearing capacity 

4) That the assessment used to make the order does not mention the wildlife or historic value of the 

trees T2, T3 and T4 

5) That a pragmatic approach to retaining important trees on site could have been reached by 

discussion and negotiation  

The objector also expresses disappointment at the lack of communication from the council prior to the order 

being made. Upon receipt of the objection a preliminary response was sent by email on 28th May and is 

included in Appendix 3. 

3.0 Response to the Objection 

The objection has been made in relation to trees T2, T3 and T4 only. 

1) Reason of expedience 

Paragraph 10 of Planning Practice Guidance for Tree Preservation Orders explicitly identifies “development 

pressure” as a reason for an authority to believe that trees are at risk. It goes on to say that it may be 

appropriate to make a precautionary order where the intentions of current or future owners are not known in 

advance. 

The intention to remove trees T2, T3 and T4 is implied by the following statement from the bottom of page 

1 of the objection letter  

“I only wish to object to the fruit trees having an order placed on them as it was never going to be our 

intention to get rid of the Silver Birch (T1) or the Ash (T5)” 

Whilst the current owners may not intend to remove T1 and T5 the proposal to erect a dwelling in close 

proximity to them would put them both at risk of irreversible damage or future pressure to have them 

removed.  

The reason of expedience is therefore supported by the presence of development pressure and the 

objector’s implied intention to remove the trees. 

2) Amenity value  

The TEMPO assessment indicates that for all three trees (fruit trees T2, T3 and T4) a TPO is defensible. 

This conclusion was reached on the basis that the trees T2 and T3 are “medium trees with a limited view 

only” and that T4 is a “small tree visible only with difficulty”. Photograph 3 in Appendix supports this 

assessment with both trees T2 and T3 being clearly visible along Gloucester Avenue walkway. The aerial 

view in photograph 1 also shows the close proximity of these two trees to the southern site boundary. 

Page 36



The TEMPO assessment also identified the trees as forming a coherent group with more or less continuous 

canopy cover, thus forming a significant block of greenery. This is a pleasing feature in an otherwise highly 

urbanised environment. The trees are on private property and therefore their fruit bearing capacity does not 

form part of their public amenity value.  

It may be that the Gloucester Avenue footway is subject to anti-social behaviour but the trees do not 

contribute to or facilitate this and the behaviour of a few individuals should not be used as a guide to the 

attitude and enjoyment of an entire community.  

The complainant is correct to highlight the fact that the trees both collectively and as a group have 

substantive value for wildlife; however biodiversity is only a secondary consideration in the assessment of 

trees for TPOs. The decision to make the order was based on an assessment of their amenity value and 

does not depend on either their wildlife or historic value. 

4.0 Proposed TPO 

The provisional order seeks to protect five individual trees; 1x birch, 2 x apple, 1x plum and 1x ash tree, as 

set out in the schedule .It is recommended that this order is confirmed in full. 

The trees contribute both individually and as a group to the visual amenity of an otherwise highly urban 

environment. However, given the relatively minor contribution of the plum tree T4 it may be considered 

appropriate to remove this from the order. This would give greater flexibility in garden management to the 

owners without significantly compromising the public amenity value of the remaining trees.  

Page 37



Appendix 1: Detailed Results of Tempo Assessment 

 

CRITERIA  T1: birch T2: apple T3: apple T4: plum T5: ash 

Condition 1 Poor 3 Fair 3 Fair 3 Fair 3 Fair 

Remaining 
longevity 

2 20-40y 1 10-20y 1 10-20y 1 10-20y 2 20-40y 

Relative 
visibility 

4 Large, 
clearly 
visible 

3 Medium, 
limited 

view 

3 Medium, 
limited 

view 

2 Small, 
visible with 

difficulty 

5 Prominent 
large tree 

Other 
Factors 

4 Group 
member 

4 Group 
member 

4 Group 
member 

4 Group 
member 

4 Group 
member 

Expediency 3  3  3  3  3  

TOTAL 14 defensible 14 defensible 14 defensible 13 defensible 17 definite 

 

 

 

Appendix 2: Site Photographs 

 

1) Aerial image showing the group of 5 trees circled in red. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 38



 

 

2) View 

from junction of 

Melton Road 

and Gloucester 

Avenue footway 

showing T1 and 

T 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3) View along the southern garden boundary (Gloucester Avenue) showing Trees T1, T2, T3 and T5 

Page 39



 

 

4) View from Melton Road showing T1 and T5 

 

 

  

Page 40



Appendix 3 

Email correspondence between CBC and the complainant from June 2020 

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

=========================================== 

 

Dear Ms Wheeler 
Thankyou for your email. This order was made following a planning advice application for the land 
in which the trees are located. It was made because in our experience trees and other habitat are 
sometimes removed from development sites as part of the process of preparing a site prior to an 
application being made. This has the effect of degrading the site whether or not consent is granted 
and can prevent a proper assessment as part of the application process. In providing planning 
advice we are required to identify ecological constraints and once we have done so there is clearly 
an incentive for landowners to remove those constraints prior to making an application. I hope you 
will understand that this reflects our experience of dealing with planning applications and is not a 
reflection upon you. 
 
You should be aware that the presence of this order does not affect your ability to apply for 
planning permission nor the Council’s ability to grant permission if it considered appropriate to do 
so. However does mean that the trees that have been protected by the order can be properly and 
fully considered as a part of any application you subsequently choose to make. 
 
I visited the site before making the order. All the trees included in the order are clearly visible from 
public rights of way and contribute to views both along Melton Road and Gloucester Avenue. I 
used the TEMPO evaluation system to assess the trees in question. This is a standard 
assessment method used by professional arborists specifically to determine the merits using 
TPOs to protect trees. It is my view that the trees included in this order merit the protection 
afforded by a TPO because of their public amenity value and for the reason of expedience. 
 
I would welcome your explanation of why you think the plan is inaccurate 
 
Regards  
Rupert 
 
 
Rupert Simms Msc AIEEM 
Senior Ecological Officer 
Planning & Regeneration Service 
 
Tel:       (01509) 634729 
Email:   Rupert.simms@charnwood.gov.uk 
Web:    www.charnwood.gov.uk 

 
 
 
From: Strong Laura  

Sent: 28 May 2020 11:36 
To: Simms Rupert 

Subject: FW: Ref PT/48 - TPO 1323 Melton Road, Syston, Leics 

 

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

=========================================== 

 

Hi Rupert 
 

Page 41

mailto:Rupert.simms@charnwood.gov.uk
http://www.charnwood.gov.uk/


Please could you respond to the below as it is not something I can help with.  Copy of letter sent to 
Mrs Stevenson-Wheeler with the TPO attached for your info (I only have unsealed version of TPO 
available electronically). 
 
Please cc. me in to your response. 
 
Thanks 
 
Laura  
 
From: K Stevenson   

Sent: 26 May 2020 

To: Strong Laura 
Cc: Jonah Mastin 

Subject: Ref PT/48 - TPO 1323 Melton Road, Syston, Leics 
Importance: High 

 
Good afternoon Laura, 
 
I have received your letter this morning and must admit I’m less than happy about it. I will be objecting to the TPO 
but in order for me to make a constructive response there seems to be information missing.  
There is nothing in the letter showing a structured and consistent approach to the initiation of the order. There is no 
explanation as to why it has been raised or the amenity value of the trees listed?  The plan is also incorrect – I 
assume this is because no-body has actually been to site to carry out a proper survey?  
It seems to me that this has been a knee jerk reaction done in a hurry in response to my pre-application advise that 
has also been ‘delayed’ which I feel has now been explained by the on set of this TPO.  
Please provide this information to allow me to make a reasonable response with my objections. Thank you in 
advance of your response 
 
Kind regards 
Katherine Stevenson-Wheeler   
 
Sent from for Windows 10 
 

  

Page 42



Appendix 4 Revised TPO plan 
 

 

Page 43


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	5 Borough of Charnwood (11 Tickow Lane, Shepshed) Tree Preservation Order 2020
	ANNEX 1 to Item 05 Order 11 Tickow Lane Shepshed
	ANNEX 2 to Item 05 Objection 11 Tickow Lane, Shepshed [Text of Email]
	ANNEX 3 to Item 05 HPS Response 11 Tickow Lane Shepshed

	6 Borough of Charnwood (1323 Melton Road, Syston) Tree Preservation Order 2020
	ANNEX 1 to Item 06 Order 1323 Melton Road Syston
	ANNEX 2 to Item 06 Objection 1323 Melton Road, Syston
	ANNEX 3 to Item 06 HPS Response 1323 Melton Rd Syston




